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UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OFFLORIDA

CASENO.: l7-cv-229l4-UU

SECURITIESAND EXCHANGE COM M ISSION,

Plaintiff,

7SOIL& GAS,LLC

and
W ILLIAM ALEXANDER SEW ELL,

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGM ENT ASTO DEFENDANT W ILLIAM ALEXANDER SEW ELL

The Securities and Exchange Comm ission having filed a Complaintand Defendant

W illiam Alexander Sewellhaving entered a general appearance;consented to the Court's

jurisdictionoverDefendantandthesubjectmatterofthisaction;consentedtoentryofthisFinal

Judgmentwithoutadmitting ordenying the allegationsofthe Complaint(exceptasto

jurisdictionandexceptasotherwiseprovidedhereininparagraphIV);waivedfindingsoffact

andconclusionsoflaw;andwaivedanyrighttoappealfrom thisFinalJudgment:

PERM ANENT INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

A.

Section5oftheSecuritiesAct

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AN D DECREED that Defendant is

permanentlyrestrainedandenjoinedfrom violatingSection5oftheSecuritiesActof1933
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(bssecuritiesAct'')(15U.S.C.977e)by,directlyorindirectly,intheabsenceofanyapplicable

exemption:

(a) Unlessaregistrationstatementisineffectastoasecurity,makinguseofany

meansorinstrumentsoftransportationorcommunication in interstatecommerce

orofthemailsto sellsuch securitythrough theuseormedium ofanyprospectus

orotherwise;

(b) Unlessaregistrationstatementisineffectastoasecurity,carryingorcausingto

be carried through the mails or in interstate commerce,by any means or

instrum entsoftransportation,any such security forthe pum ose ofsaleorfor

deliveryaftersale;or

(c) Making useofanymeansorinstrumentsoftransportationorcommunicationin

interstatecommerceorofthemailstooffertoselloroffertobuythroughtheuse

or medium ofany prospectus orotherwise any security,unless a registration

statementhasbeen filed with theCommission asto such security,orwhile the

registrationstatementisthesubjectofarefusalorderorstoporderor(priortothe

effectivedateoftheregistrationstatement)anypublicproceedingorexamination

underSection8oftheSecuritiesActg15U.S.C.j77hj.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED,ADJUDGED,AND DECREED that,as provided in

FederalRuleofCivilProcedure65(d)(2),theforegoingparagraphalsobindsthefollowingwho

receiveactualnoticeofthisFinalJudgmentbypersonalserviceorotherwise:(a)Defendant's

om cers,agents,servants,employees,andattorneys;and(b)otherpersonsinactiveconcertor

participationwithDefendantorwithanyonedescribedin(a).
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B.

Section17(a)oftheSecuritiesAct

IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant is

restrained andenjoinedfrom violating Section l7(a)oftheSecuritiesAct(15permanently

U.S.C.j77q(a))intheofferorsaleofanysecuritybytheuseofanymeansorinstrumentsof

transportation orcommunication in interstate commerceorby use ofthe mails,directly or

indirectly-.

(a) toemployanydevice,scheme,orartificetodefraud;

(b) toobtainmoneyorpropertybymeansofanyuntruestatementofamaterialfact

orany omission ofa materialfactnecessary in orderto make the statements

made,inlightofthecircumstancesunderwhichtheyweremadesnotmisleading;

(c) toengageinanytransaction,practice,orcourseofbusinesswhichoperatesor

wouldoperateasafraudordeceituponthepurchaser,

by,directlyorindirectly,(i)creatingafalseappearanceorotherwisedeceivinganyperson,or(ii)

disseminating falseorm isleading documents,materials,orinformation ormaking,eitherorally

orin writing,any false ormisleading statementin any communication with any investoror

prospectiveinvestor,about:

(a)anyinvestmentinorofferingofsecurities',

(b)anyinvestmentstrategyorinvestmentinsecurities',

(c)theprospectsforsuccessofanyproductorcompany;or

(d)theuseofinvestorfunds.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED,ADJUDGED.AND DECREED that,as provided in

FederalRuleofCivilProcedure65(d)(2),theforegoingparagraphalsobindsthefollowingwho

receiveactualnoticeofthisFinalJudgmentbypersonalserviceorotherwise:(a)Defendant's

omcers,agents,servants,employees,andattorneys;and(b)otherpersonsinactiveconcertor

participationwithDefendantorwithanyonedescribedin(a).

C.

Section10(b)oftheExchangeActandRule10b-5(b)

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendant

permanentlyrestrainedandenjoinedfrom violating,directlyorindirectly,Section10(b)ofthe

SecuritiesExchangeActof1934(theisExchangeAct'')gl5U.S.C.j78j(b)1andRulel0b-5

promulgated thereunder(17C.F.R.j240.10b-51,by usingany meansorinstrumentality of

interstatecommerce,orofthe mails,orofany facility'ofany nationalsecuritiesexchange,in

connectionwiththepurchaseorsaleofanysecurity:

toemployanydevice,scheme,orartificetodefraud;

(b) tomakeanyuntruestatementofamaterialfactortoomittostateamaterialfact

necessary inordertomakethestatementsmade,in thelightofthecircumstances

underwhichtheyweremade,notmisleading;or

(c) toengageinanyact,practice,orcourseofbusinesswhichoperatesorwould

operateasafraudordeceituponanyperson,

bydirectlyorindirectly,(i)creatingafalseappearanceorotherwiiedeceivinganyperson,or(ii)

disseminatingfalseormisleading documents,materials,orinformation ormaking,eitherorally

orin writing,any false ormisleading statementin any communication with any investoror

prospectiveinvestor,about..

(a)anyinvestmentinorofferingofsecurities',

4
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(b)anyinvestmentstrategyorinvestmentinsecurities;

(c)theprospectsforsuccessofanyproductorcompany;or

(d)theuseofinvestorfunds.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED,ADJUDGED,AND DECREED that,as provided in

FederalRuleofCivilProcedure65(d)(2),theforegoingparagraphalsobindsthefollowingwho

receiveactualnoticeofthisFinalJudgmentbypersonalserviceorotherwise:(a)Defendant's

officers,agents,servants,employees,andattorneys;and(b)otherpersonsinactiveconcertor

participationwithDefendantorwithanyonedescribedin(a).

lI.

DISGORGEMENT.PFEJUDGMENTINTERESTANDCIW LPENALTY

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED,ADJUDGED,AND DECREED thatDefendantisliable

fordisgorgementof$93,497.55,representingprofitsgainedasaresultoftheconductallegedin

theComplaint,togetherwithprejudgmentinterestthereonintheamountof$4,439.66,andacivil

penaltyintheamountof$160,000pursuanttoSection20(d)oftheSecuritiesAct(15U.S.C.

j77t(d)1andSection21(d)(3)oftheExchangeAct(15U.S.C.'j78u(d)(3)).Defendantshall

satisfy thisobligationbypaying$257,937.2l,whichhehasescrowedwithhiscounsel,tothe

SecuritiesandExchangeCommissionwithin 14daysafterentryofthisFinalJudgment.

Dtfendantmaytransm itpaymentelectronically totheComm ission,which willprovide

detailed ACH transfer/Fedwireinstructionsupon request. Paymentmay alsobemadedirectly

from a bank account via Pay.gov through the SEC website at

hup://ww .sec.cov/abouvofsces/ofm .htm. Defendantmay also pay by certified check,bank

cashier'scheck,orUnited Statespostalmoney orderpayable to the Securitiesand Exchange

Commission,whichshallbedeliveredormailedto
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EnterpriseServicesCenter
AccountsReceivableBranch
6500SouthM acArthurBoulevard

OklahomaCity,OK 73169

andshallbeaccompaniedbyaletteridentifyingthecasetitle,civilactionnumber,andnameof

thisCourt;W illiam AlexanderSewellasadefendantinthisaction;andspecifyingthatpayment

ismadepursuanttothisFinalJudgment.

Defendantshallsimultaneously transmitphotocopiesofevidence ofpaymentand case

By makingthispayment,

DefendantrelinquishesaIllegalandequitabltright,title,and interestin suchfundsand nopart

ofthefundsshallbereturnedtoDefendant.

TheCommissionmayenforcetheCourt'sjudgmentfordisgorgementandprejudgment

inttrestbymovingforcivilcontempt(and/orthroughothercollectionproceduresauthorizedby

law)atanytimeafter14daysfollowingentryofthisFinalJudgment.Defendantshallpaypost

identifying information totheComm ission'scounselin thisaction.

judgmentinterestonanydelinquentamountspursuantto28U.S.C.j

shallholdthe funds,togethcrwith any interestand.incomeearned thereon (collectively,the

$dFund''),pendingfurtherorderoftheCourt.

ThtCommission may proposeaplan to distributethe FundsubjecttotheCourt's

approval. Such aplan mayprovidethattheFundshallbedistributedpursuanttotheFairFund

provisionsofSection 308(a)oftheSarbanes-oxley Ad of2002. ThtCourtshallrdain

jurisdictionovertheadministrationofanydistributionoftheFund. lftheCommissionstaff

determinesthatthe Fund willnotbe distributed
, the Commission

pursuanttothisFinalJudgm enttotheUnittdStatesTreasury.

shallsend the fundspaid

1961. The Commission

Regardlessofwhetherany such FairFund distribution ismade, amountsorderedto be

paid as civilpenalties pursuant to this Judgment shall be treated as penalties paid to the
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governmentforaIlpurposes,including aIItaxpurposes. Topreservethedeterrenteffectofthe

civilpenalty,Defendantshallnot, after offsetor reduction of any award of compensatory

damagesin any Related InvestorActionbasedonDefendant'spaymentofdisgorgementinthis

action,arguethathe isentitled to,norshallhe furtherbenefitby
, offsetorreduction ofsuch

compensatory damagesaward by the amountofany partofDefendant's paymentofa civil

penaltyinthisaction(ddpenaltyOffsef'l.lfthecourtinanyRelatedlnvestorActiongrantssuch

aPenaltyOffset,Defendantshall,within30daysafterentryofasnalordergrantingthePenalty

Offset,notifytheCommission'scounselinthisactionandpaytheamountofthePenaltyOffset

totheUnitedStatesTreasuryortoaFairFund
,astheCommissiondirects.Suchapaymentshall

notbedeemedan additionalcivilpenalty and shallnotbedeemed to changetheamountofthe

civilpenalty imposed in thisJudgment. Forpurposesofthis paragraph
, a tsRelated lnvestor

Action''meansaprivatedamagesaction broughtagainstDefendantby oron behalfofone or

moreinvestorsbasedonsubstantiallythesamefactsasallegedintheComplaintinthisaction
.

111.

INCORPORATIONOFCONSENT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED,ADJUDGED
, AND DECREED that the Consent is

incorporatedhereinwiththesameforceandeffectasi?fullysetforthherein,andthatDefendant

shallcomplyw ithaIloftheundertakingsandagreementssetforththerein
.

IV.

BANKRUPTCY NONDISCHARGEABILITY

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED,ADJUDGED,AND DECREED that,solelyforpurposesof

exceptionsto discharge setforth in Section 523 oftheBankruptcy Code
, l1U.S.C.j523,the

allegations in the complaintare true and admitted by Defendant
, and further,any debtfor
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disgorgement,prejudgmentinterest,civilpenaltyorqtheramountsduebyDefendantunderthis

FinalJudgmentoranyotherjudgment,order,consentorder,decreeorsettlementagreement

enteredinconnectionwiththisproceeding,isadebtfortheviolationbyDefendantofthefederal

securities Iaws or any regulation or order issued under such laws,as set forth in Section

523(a)(19)oftheBankruptcyCode,11U.S.C.j523(a)(19).

V.

RETENTJONOFJURISDICTION

IT ISFURTHER ORDERED,ADJUDGED,AND DECREED thatthisCourtshallretain

jurisdictionofthismatterforthepurposesofenforcingthetermsofthisFinalJudgment.

Dated: . ,2017

/ g
; .Z .
UNITED STATESDISTRICT J GE

Copiestocounselofrecord
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